Securities and Exchange Commission v. Nasir N. Shakouri et al
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UNITED STATESDISTRICT COURT
FOR THE CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSION,
Plaintiff,

VS. Case No. 2:17-cv-01929-SVW-PLA

NASIR N. SHAKOURI, ROBERT S.
TORINO, BRONSONL. QUON, JOHN
S. HONG, and JONATHAN K.
SKARIE,

Defendants.

FINAL JUDGMENT ASTO DEFENDANT BRONSON L. QUON

The Securities and Exchange Comsios having filed a Complaint and

Defendant Bronson L. Quon@efendant”) having entetlea general appearance;

consented to the Court’s jurisdiction ogefendant and theubject matter of this

action; consented to entry of this Hidadgment; waived findings of fact and

conclusions of law; and waived any rigbtappeal from this Final Judgment:
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l.

IT ISHEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGEDAND DECREED that Defendant is
permanently restrained and enjoined from violating, directly or indirectly, Section
10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 198% “Exchange AE) [15 U.S.C. 8
78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 promgated thereunder [17 C.F.R. 8§ 240.10b-5], by using
any means or instrumentality of intetstaommerce, or of the mails, or of any
facility of any national securities exchangeconnection withthe purchase or sale of
any security:

(a) toemploy any device, lseme, or artifice to defraud;

(b) to make any untrue statement of aemnal fact or to omit to state a
material fact necessary in order tokmdhe statements made, in the light
of the circumstances under whicteyhwere made, not misleading; or

(c) toengage in any aqtractice, or course of buess which operates or
would operate as a frawd deceit upon any person.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUBED, AND DECREED that, as

provided in Federal Rule of Civil Pradere 65(d)(2), the fogoing paragraph also
binds the following who receive actual re#iof this Judgment by personal service or
otherwise: (a) Defendantificers, agents, servansmnployees, and attorneys; and
(b) other persons in active concert or fggration with Defendant or with anyone

described in (a).
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.

IT ISHEREBY FURTHER ORDERE, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that
Defendant is permanently remhed and enjoined from violating Section 17(a) of the
Securities Act of 1933 (the “Securities Acf1b U.S.C. § 77q(a)h the offer or sale
of any security by the use of any means or instruments of transportation or
communication in interstate commerce or bg asthe mails, directly or indirectly:

(a) to employ any device, sahe, or artifice to defraud;

(b) to obtain money or property by means of any untrue statement of a
material fact or any omission of a tegal fact necessary in order to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
they were made, not misleading; or

(c) toengage in any transactigmactice, or course of business which
operates or would operate aBaud or deceit upon the purchaser.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUBED, AND DECREED that, as

provided in Federal Rule of Civil Pradere 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also
binds the following who receive actual re#tiof this Judgment by personal service or
otherwise: (a) Defendant&fficers, agents, servananployees, and attorneys; and
(b) other persons in active concert or fggration with Defendant or with anyone

described in (a).
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1.

IT ISHEREBY FURTHER ORDEREPADJUDGED, AND DECREED that
Defendant is permanently restrainexda@njoined from aiding and abetting any
violation of Section 15(d) of the Exchge Act [15 U.S.C§ 780(d)] and Rules 12b-
20 and 15d-1 promulgatehereunder [17 C.F.R. 88 240.12b-20, 240.15d-1] by
knowingly or recklessly providing subst&al assistance to an issuer that:

(a) fails to file an annual repontithin the period specified in the
appropriate report form for the fisgaar in which a registration
statement under the Securities Aetbme effective and for each fiscal
year thereafter, unless the registrant is exempt from such filing by
Section 15(d) of the Exchange tAar the rules thereunder; or

(b) fails to include in an annual repdine information expressly required to
be included in an annual report aswth further material information as
may be necessary to make the required statements, in the light of the
circumstances under which thage made not misleading.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUBED, AND DECREED that, as
provided in Federal Rule of Civil Pradere 65(d)(2), the fogoing paragraph also
binds the following who receive actual retiof this Judgment by personal service of
otherwise: (a) Defendanttfficers, agents, servansmnployees, and attorneys; and
(b) other persons in active concert or fggration with Defendant or with anyone

described in (a).
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V.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDEREDADJUDGED, AND DECREED that

Defendant is permanently restrainexda@njoined from aiding and abetting any

violation of Section 13(b)(2)(A) and 13(B)(B) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §

78m(b)(2)(A), (B)] by knowingly orecklessly providing substantial assistance to an

issuer that fails to make and keep boo&sprds, and accounts, which, in reasonable

detail, accurately and fairleflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of

the issuer or to devise and maintain aeaysbf internal accounting controls sufficient

to provide reasonable assurances that:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

transactions are executed in@cance with management’s general or
specific authorization;

transactions are recorded as neagssapermit prepateon of financial
statements in conformity with genadly accepted amunting principles

or any other criteria applicable soch statements, and to maintain
accountability for assets;

access to assets is permitted onlgccordance with management’s
general or specific authorization; and

the recorded accountabylfor assets is compared with the existing
assets at reasonable intervals argr@priate action is taken with respect

to any differences.
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IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUBED, AND DECREED that, as
provided in Federal Rule of Civil Pradere 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also
binds the following who receive actual re#tiof this Judgment by personal service or
otherwise: (a) Defendant&fficers, agents, servananployees, and attorneys; and
(b) other persons in active concert or ggpation with Defendant or with anyone
described in (a).

V.

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGEDAND DECREED that Defendant is
permanently restrained and enjoined fromlating, directly or indirectly, Section
13(b)(5) of the Exchanggct [15 U.S.C. § 78m(b)(5)]ral Rule 13b2-1 promulgated
thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 240.13b2-1], by knogWnfailing to implement a system of
internal accounting controls or falsifying causing to be falsified any book, record,
or account subject to Section 13(b)(2) of the Exchange Act.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUBED, AND DECREED that, as
provided in Federal Rule of Civil Pradare 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also
binds the following who receive actual re#tiof this Judgment by personal service or
otherwise: (a) Defendant&fficers, agents, servananployees, and attorneys; and
(b) other persons in active concert or fggration with Defendant or with anyone

described in (a).
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IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGEDAND DECREED that Defendant is
permanently restrained and enjoined fromlating, directly or indirectly, Rule 13b2-
2 promulgated under the Exchange Act [1F.K. § 240.13b2-2] by, while acting as

a director or officer:

(@)

(b)

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUBED, AND DECREED that, as

provided in Federal Rule of Civil Pradere 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also

VI.

making or causing to be madeaterially false statement to an
accountant in connection with, or dtmg to state, or causing another
person to omit to state, any magéfiact necessarny order to make
statements made, in light ofetltcircumstances under which such
statements are made, not misleadinggn accountant in connection with
any required audit, resw or examination of the financial statements of
the issuer or the preparation or filing of any document or report requirg
to be filed with the Commission; or

taking any action to coerce, mpulate, mislead, or fraudulently

influence any independent public or certified public accountant engagé

in the performance of an audit or reviewthe financial statements of an
issuer that are required to be filwith the Commission if it is known or
should be known that such actionsifccessful, could result in rendering

the issuer’s financial stateants materially misleading.

v

o
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binds the following who receive actualtioe of this Final Judgment by personal
service or otherwise: (&efendant’s officers, agentservants, employees, and
attorneys; and (b) other persoin active concert or pagipation with Defendant or
with anyone described in (a).

VIL.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGE, AND DECREED that, pursuant
to Section 21(d)(2) of the Exchange Atb U.S.C. § 78u(d)(2)and Section 20(e) of
the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77t(e)],f@edant is prohibited from acting as an
officer or director of any issuer that has a class of securities registered pursuant tq
Section 12 of the Exchange Act [15 U.S8X8l] or that is required to file reports
pursuant to Section 15(d) of thed®ange Act [15 U.S.C. § 780(d)].

VIII.

IT ISHEREBY FURTHER ORDEREDADJUDGED, AND DECREED that
Defendant is liable for disgorgement of $1800, plus prejudgment interest thereon.
Defendant’s payment of disggement and prejudgmentanest shall be deemed
satisfied by amounts already paid by Defendant to iPayment, Inc.

IX.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUBED, AND DECREED that the
Consent is incorporated herein with thensaforce and effect as if fully set forth
herein, and that Defendant shall comply with all of the undertakings and agreeme

set forth therein.

A

Nts
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X.
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, for

purposes of exceptions to discharge set forth in Section 523 of the Bankruptcy Code,
11 U.S.C. § 523, the allegations in the Complaint are true and admitted by Defendant.
XI.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that this Court
shall retain jurisdiction of this matter for the purposes of enforcing the terms of this
Final Judgment.

XII.

There being no just reason for delay, pursuant to Rule 54(b) of the Federal

Rules of Civil Procedure, the Clerk 1s ordered to enter this Final Judgment forthwith

and without further notice.

Dated: September 26 2017

L Ll
>J# /M"%/ Tty
Honorable Stephen V. Wilson
United States District Judge




